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(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by checkmark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15 (d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports) and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes ☒ No ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T ( 232.405
of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit
and post such files). Yes ☒ No ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ☐Accelerated filer ☐
Non-accelerated filer ☐

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company) 
Smaller Reporting Company ☒
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1347 PROPERTY INSURANCE HOLDINGS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

 June 30,
2016
(unaudited)

December
31,
2015

ASSETS
Investments:
   Fixed income securities, at fair value (amortized cost of $25,276 and $20,332, respectively) $ 25,658 $ 20,238
   Equity investments, at fair value (cost of $1,000 and $0, respectively) 1,010 —
   Short-term investments, at cost which approximates fair value 290 1,149
   Limited liability investments, at cost which approximates fair value 387 248
Total investments 27,345 21,635
Cash and cash equivalents 45,565 47,957
Deferred policy acquisition costs, net 4,139 4,030
Premiums receivable, net of allowance for credit losses of $3 for both periods 2,211 2,395
Ceded unearned premiums 3,887 2,805
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses 2,829 —
Reinsurance recoverable on loss and loss adjustment expense reserves 3,431 120
Funds deposited with reinsured companies — 725
Current income taxes recoverable 1,006 965
Net deferred income taxes 203 506
Property and equipment, net 281 234
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $4 and $3, respectively 5 6
Other assets 820 705
Total assets $ 91,722 $ 82,083

LIABILITIES
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves $ 5,884 $ 2,123
Unearned premium reserves 24,924 23,442
Ceded reinsurance premiums payable 5,700 3,283
Agent commissions payable 752 403
Premiums collected in advance 2,103 870
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,281 1,863
Series B Preferred Shares, $25.00 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized, 120,000 shares
issued and outstanding for both periods 2,527 2,593

Total liabilities $ 44,171 $ 34,577

Commitments and contingencies (Note 16)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 6,108,125 and 6,358,125
issued and outstanding at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively $ 6 $ 6

Additional paid-in capital 46,791 48,688
Retained earnings 830 605
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 259 (62 )

47,886 49,237
Less: treasury stock at cost; 49,119 and 224,851 shares as of June 30, 2016 and December 31,
2015,  respectively (335 ) (1,731 )

Total shareholders’ equity 47,551 47,506
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 91,722 $ 82,083

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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1347 PROPERTY INSURANCE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

(Unaudited)
Three months ended
June 30,

Six months ended
June 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015
Revenue:
    Net premiums earned $7,512 $6,251 $15,733 $12,269
    Net investment income 127 79 242 157
    Other income 254 155 517 459
Total revenue 7,893 6,485 16,492 12,885

Expenses:
   Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 1,838 3,017 8,474 3,646
   Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs 2,063 1,571 4,053 3,097
   General and administrative expenses 1,746 1,985 3,324 3,790
   Loss on termination of Management Services Agreement
(MSA) — — — 5,421

   Accretion of discount on Series B Preferred Shares 86 109 174 109
Total expenses 5,733 6,682 16,025 16,063

Income (Loss) before income tax expense (benefit) 2,160 (197 ) 467 (3,178 )
Income tax expense (benefit) 820 (72 ) 242 (1,029 )
Net income (loss) $1,340 $(125 ) $225 $(2,149 )

Net income (loss) per share:
   Basic $0.22 $(0.02 ) $0.04 $(0.34 )
   Diluted $0.22 $(0.02 ) $0.04 $(0.34 )
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
   Basic 6,097,043 6,355,475 6,104,061 6,356,793
   Diluted 6,097,043 6,355,475 6,104,061 6,356,793

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Net income (loss) $1,340 $(125 ) $225 $(2,149 )
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments available for sale, net
of income taxes 93 (81 ) 321 (6 )

Comprehensive income (loss) $1,433 $(206 ) $546 $(2,155 )

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1347 PROPERTY INSURANCE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

(in thousands, except per share data)
Common Stock Treasury Stock

Paid-in
Capital

Retained
Earnings
(Deficit)

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
(Loss) Income

Total
Shareholders’
EquityShares Amount Shares Amount

Balance-January 1, 2015 6,358,125 $6 — $— $47,631 $2,278 $(1 ) $49,914
Stock compensation expense — — — — 47 — — 47
Performance shares & warrants
issued pursuant to MSA termination — — — — 1,010 — — 1,010

Repurchases of common stock (223,851 ) — 223,851 (1,731 ) — — — (1,731 )
Net loss — — — — — (1,673 ) — (1,673 )
Other comprehensive loss — — — — — — (61 ) (61 )
Balance - December 31, 2015 6,134,274 $6 223,851 $(1,731 ) $48,688 $605 $(62 ) $47,506

Stock compensation expense — — — — 20 — — 20
Repurchases of common stock (75,268 ) — 75,268 (521 ) — — — (521 )
Retirement of treasury shares — — (250,000) 1,917 (1,917 ) — — —
Net income — — — — — 225 — 225
Other comprehensive income — — — — — — 321 321
Balance - June 30, 2016 (unaudited) 6,059,006 $6 49,119 $(335 ) $46,791 $830 $259 $47,551

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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1347 PROPERTY INSURANCE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)

(in thousands)
Six months ended
June 30,
2016 2015

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Net income (loss) $225 $(2,149 )
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Issuance of Preferred Shares, Performance Shares, and Warrants pursuant to MSA termination
transaction — 3,321

Accretion of discount on Series B Preferred Shares 174 109
Net deferred income taxes 137 (369 )
Stock compensation expense 20 22
Depreciation expense 31 26
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Premiums receivable, net 184 (102 )
Reinsurance recovery assets (6,140 ) —
Amounts held on deposit with reinsured companies 725 —
Ceded unearned premiums (1,082 ) (855 )
Deferred policy acquisition costs, net (109 ) (326 )
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves 3,761 502
Premiums collected in advance 1,233 1,048
Due to related party — (145 )
Unearned premium reserves 1,482 2,494
Ceded reinsurance premiums payable 2,417 883
Current income taxes payable (41 ) (1,370 )
Other, net 655 618
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,672 3,707

Investing activities:
Purchases of furniture and equipment (79 ) (6 )
Acquisition of entity, net of cash acquired — (305 )
Purchases of fixed income securities (4,944 ) (5,696 )
Purchase of equity investments (1,000 ) —
Purchase of limited liability investments (139 ) (159 )
Net proceeds from short-term investments 859 1,586
Net cash used in investing activities (5,303 ) (4,580 )

Financing activities:
Payment of dividends on preferred shares (240 ) —
Purchases of treasury stock (521 ) (233 )
Net cash used by financing activities (761 ) (233 )
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Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,392 ) (1,106 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 47,957 53,639
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $45,565 $52,533

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
Income taxes $228 $710

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1347 PROPERTY INSURANCE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

($ amounts in thousands, except per share data)

1. Nature of Business

Maison Insurance Holdings, Inc. was incorporated on October 2, 2012 in the State of Delaware. On November 19,
2013, the Company changed its legal name from Maison Insurance Holdings, Inc. to 1347 Property Insurance
Holdings, Inc. (“PIH”). PIH is a holding company and is engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the property and casualty
insurance business. PIH holds all of the capital stock of three subsidiaries: Maison Insurance Company (“Maison”),
Maison Managers Inc. (“MMI”), and ClaimCor, LLC (“ClaimCor”). Unless context denotes otherwise, the terms
“Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to 1347 Property Insurance Holdings, Inc., and its subsidiaries.

Prior to March 31, 2014, PIH was a wholly owned subsidiary of Kingsway America Inc. (“KAI”). KAI, in turn, is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Kingsway Financial Services Inc. (“KFSI”), a publicly owned holding company based in
Toronto, Ontario, Canada. On March 31, 2014, PIH completed an initial public offering (“IPO”) of its common stock.
On June 13, 2014, PIH completed a follow-on offering of its common stock to the public. Through the combination of
the Company’s IPO and follow-on offering, PIH issued approximately five million shares of its common stock. As of
June 30, 2016 KAI held approximately 1.1 million shares of our common stock, which is equivalent to 17.7% of our
outstanding shares.

Maison began providing homeowners insurance, manufactured home insurance and dwelling fire insurance to
individuals in Louisiana in December 2012. Maison writes both full peril property policies as well as wind/hail only
exposures in Louisiana and distributes its policies through a network of independent insurance agents. On May 13,
2015 the Company was notified by the Texas Department of Insurance that a Certificate of Authority had been
granted to Maison, allowing us to begin writing insurance in the State of Texas. Maison began assuming wind/hail
only insurance for commercial properties in Texas beginning in June 2015. In September 2015, Maison began writing
manufactured home policies in the State of Texas on a direct basis.

In addition to the voluntary policies Maison writes, we have participated in the last four rounds of take-outs from
Louisiana Citizens Property Insurance Company (“Citizens”), occurring on December 1st of each year. As the State of
Louisiana has not historically been in the business of serving as an insurer, an insurance “take-out” program was
implemented to reduce the number of properties insured by Citizens. Under this program, state-approved insurance
companies, such as Maison, have the opportunity to assume insurance policies written by Citizens.
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MMI serves as the Company’s management services subsidiary, known as a managing general agency and provides
underwriting, policy administration, claims administration, marketing, accounting, and other management services to
Maison. MMI contracts primarily with independent agents for policy sales and services, and also contracts with an
independent third-party for policy administration services. As a managing general agency, MMI is licensed by and
subject to the regulatory oversight of both the Louisiana Department of Insurance (“LDI”) and Texas Department of
Insurance (“TDI”).

On January 2, 2015, the Company completed its acquisition of 100% of the membership interest of ClaimCor, a
claims and underwriting technical solutions company. Maison processes claims made by our policyholders through
ClaimCor, and also through various third-party claims adjusting companies. MMI has ultimate authority over the
claims handling process, while the agents we appoint have no authority to settle our claims or otherwise exercise
control over the claims process.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation:

These statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (“GAAP”).

Principles of Consolidation:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation.

7 
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1347 PROPERTY INSURANCE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
($ amounts in thousands, except per share data)

The Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements:

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures about contingent
assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period reported. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Changes in estimates are
recorded in the accounting period in which the change is determined. The critical accounting estimates and
assumptions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements include the provision for loss and loss adjustment
expense reserves, the valuation of fixed income and equity securities, the valuation of net deferred income taxes, the
valuation of various securities we have issued in conjunction with the termination of the management services
agreement with 1347 Advisors, LLC, the valuation of deferred policy acquisition costs and goodwill, and stock-based
compensation expense.

Investments:

Investments in fixed income securities and equity investments in common stock are classified as available-for-sale and
reported at estimated fair value. Unrealized gains and losses are included in accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax, until sold or an other-than-temporary impairment is recognized, at which point the cumulative
unrealized gains or losses are transferred to the consolidated statement of operations.

Limited liability investments include investments in limited liability companies in which the Company’s interests are
deemed minor and therefor, are accounted for under the cost method of accounting which approximates their fair
value.

Short-term investments, which consist of investments with original maturities between three months and one year, are
reported at cost, which approximates fair value due to their short-term nature.

Realized gains and losses on sales of investments are determined on a first-in, first-out basis, and are included in net
investment income.
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Interest income is included in net investment income and is recorded as it accrues.

The Company accounts for its investments using trade date accounting.

The Company conducts a quarterly review to identify and evaluate investments that show objective indications of
possible impairment. Impairment is charged to the statement of operations if the fair value of the instrument falls
below its amortized cost and the decline is considered other-than-temporary. Factors considered in determining
whether a loss is other-than-temporary include the length of time and extent to which fair value has been below cost,
the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and the Company’s ability and intent to hold the
investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less.

Premiums Receivable:

Premiums receivable include premium balances due and uncollected and installment premiums not yet due from
agents and insureds. Premiums receivable are reported net of an estimated allowance for credit losses.

Reinsurance:

Reinsurance premiums, losses, and loss adjustment expenses are accounted for on a basis consistent with those used in
accounting for the original policies issued and the terms of the reinsurance contracts. Premiums and losses ceded to
other companies have been reported as a reduction of premium revenue and incurred net losses and loss adjustment
expenses. A reinsurance recoverable is recorded for that portion of paid and unpaid losses and loss adjustment
expenses that are ceded to other companies.
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1347 PROPERTY INSURANCE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

($ amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs:

The Company defers commissions, premium taxes, assessments and other underwriting and agency expenses that are
directly related to successful efforts to acquire new or existing insurance policies to the extent they are considered
recoverable. Costs deferred on insurance products are amortized over the period in which premiums are earned. Costs
associated with unsuccessful efforts or costs that cannot be tied directly to a successful policy acquisition are expensed
as incurred, as opposed to being deferred and amortized as the premium is earned. The method followed in
determining the deferred policy acquisition costs limits the deferral to its realizable value by giving consideration to
estimated future loss and loss adjustment expenses to be incurred as revenues are earned. Anticipated investment
income is included in determining the realizable value of the deferred policy acquisition costs. Changes in estimates, if
any, are recorded in the accounting period in which they are determined.

Income Taxes:

The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes, whereby deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for (i) the differences between the financial statement carrying amount of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and (ii) loss and tax credit carry-forwards. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of
a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the date of enactment. Future tax benefits are
recognized to the extent that realization of such benefits is more likely than not and a valuation allowance is
established for any portion of a deferred tax asset that management believes will not be realized. Current federal
income taxes are charged or credited to operations based upon amounts estimated to be payable or recoverable as a
result of taxable operations for the current year. The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to
unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense (benefit).

Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment is reported at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of property and
equipment is recorded on a straight-line basis over estimated useful life which range from seven years for furniture,
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five years for vehicles, three years for computer equipment, and the shorter of estimated useful life or the term of the
lease for leasehold improvements. Property and equipment is estimated to have no salvage value at its useful life-end.

Rent expense for the Company’s office leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Rent
expense was $173 and $96 for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets on our consolidated balance sheet represents a non-compete agreement associated with our
acquisition of ClaimCor in January 2015. The Company amortizes identified intangible assets to expense over their
estimated lives using the straight-line method. The Company evaluates intangible assets for impairment as events and
circumstances change or at minimum, on an annual basis.

Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves:

Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves represent the estimated liabilities for reported loss events, incurred but not
yet reported loss events and the related estimated loss adjustment expenses. The Company performs a continuing
review of its loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, including its reserving techniques as well as the impact of
reinsurance on our loss reserves. The loss and loss adjustment expense reserves are also reviewed at minimum, on an
annual basis by qualified third party actuaries. Since the loss and loss adjustment expense reserves are based on
estimates, the ultimate liability may be more or less than such reserves. The effects of changes in such estimated
reserves are included in the results of income in the period in which the estimates are changed. Such changes in
estimates could occur in a future period and may be material to the Company’s results of operations and financial
position in such period.

Concentration of Credit Risk:

Financial instruments which potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk include investments,
cash, premiums receivable, and amounts due from reinsurers on losses incurred. The Company maintains its cash with
three major U.S. domestic banking institutions. Such amounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”) up to $250 per institution. At June 30, 2016 the Company held funds in excess of these FDIC
insured amounts. The terms of these deposits are on demand to mitigate some of the associated risk. The Company has
not incurred losses related to these deposits.
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1347 PROPERTY INSURANCE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

($ amounts in thousands, except per share data)

The Company has not experienced significant losses related to premiums receivable from its policyholders and
management believes that amounts provided as an allowance for credit losses is adequate.

The Company has not experienced any losses on amounts due from reinsurers. In order to limit the credit risk
associated with amounts potentially due from reinsurers, the Company uses several different reinsurers, all of which
have an A.M. Best Rating of A- (Excellent) or better. Absent such rating, the Company has required its reinsurers to
place collateral on deposit with an independent institution under a trust agreement for the Company’s benefit.

The Company also has risk associated with the lack of geographic diversification due to the fact that Maison
exclusively underwrites policies in Louisiana and Texas. The Company insures personal property located in 62 of the
64 parishes in the State of Louisiana. As of June 30, 2016, these policies are concentrated within these parishes,
presented as a percentage of our total policies in force in all states, as follows: Saint Tammany Parish 15.9%,
Jefferson Parish 15.8%, East Baton Rouge Parish 7.8%, Orleans Parish 6.1%, Terrebonne Parish 5.5%, Livingston
Parish 5.5%, and Tangipahoa Parish 5.4%. No other parish individually has over 5.0% of the policies in force as of
June 30, 2016. The remaining parishes combine to equal 34.2% of the total policies in force as of June 30, 2016. On a
direct basis, Maison writes in 78 of the 254 counties that comprise the State of Texas, however no single county
represents over 5.0% of our policies in force as of June 30, 2016.

Revenue Recognition:

Premium revenue is recognized on a pro rata basis over the term of the respective policy contract. Unearned premium
reserves represent the portion of premium written that is applicable to the unexpired term of policies in force.

Service charges on installment premiums are recognized as income upon receipt of related installment payments and
are reflected in other income.

Revenue from other policy fees is deferred and recognized over the terms of the respective policy period, with revenue
reflected in other income.
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Any customer payment received is applied first to any service charge or policy fee due, with the remaining amount
applied toward any premium due.

Ceded premiums are charged to income over the applicable term of the various reinsurance contracts with third party
reinsurers. Ceded unearned premiums represent the unexpired portion of premiums ceded to reinsurers and are
reported as an asset on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Premiums collected in advance occur when the policyholder premium is paid in advance of the effective
commencement period of the policy and are recorded as a liability on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Stock-Based Compensation:

The Company has accounted for stock-based compensation under the provisions of ASC Topic 718 – Stock
Compensation which requires the use of the fair-value based method to determine compensation for all arrangements
under which employees and others receive shares of stock or equity instruments (stock options and common stock
purchase warrants). The fair value of each stock option award is estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes valuation model using assumptions for expected volatility, expected dividends, expected term, and the
risk-free interest rate. The fair value of each stock option award is recorded as compensation expense on a straight-line
basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the period in which the stock options vest, with a
corresponding increase to additional paid-in capital.

The Company has also issued restricted stock units (“RSUs”) to certain of its employees which have been accounted for
as equity based awards since, upon vesting, they are required to be settled in the Company’s common shares. The
Company used a Monte Carlo valuation model to estimate the fair value of these awards upon grant date as the vesting
of these RSUs occurs based solely upon market-based conditions. The fair value of each RSU is recorded as
compensation expense over the derived service period, as determined by the valuation model. Should the
market-based condition be achieved prior to the expiration of the derived service period, any unrecognized cost will be
recorded as compensation expense in the period in which the RSUs actually vest.

10 
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1347 PROPERTY INSURANCE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

($ amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The carrying values of certain financial instruments, including cash, short-term investments, accounts receivable and
accounts payable approximate fair value due to their short-term nature. The Company measures the fair value of
financial instruments in accordance with GAAP which defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received
for an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset (or liability) in an
orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. GAAP also establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value.

Earnings (loss) Per Common Share:

Basic earnings (loss) per common share is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the respective period.

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share assumes conversion of all potentially dilutive outstanding stock options,
warrants or other convertible financial instruments. Potential common shares outstanding are excluded from the
calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per share if their effect is anti-dilutive.

Operating Segments:

The Company operates in a single segment – property and casualty insurance.

3. Recently Issued Accounting Standards
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ASU 2015-09: Financial Services – Insurance:

In May 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
2015-09: Financial Services – Insurance (Topic 944): Disclosures about Short-Duration Contracts. This update
provides for an increase in the transparency of accounting estimates made by companies in the measurement of
short-duration contracts and unpaid claim and claim adjustment expense liabilities by requiring additional disclosures,
as well as improvements to existing disclosures. The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2015, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, applied
retrospectively, with early adoption permitted. The adoption of this guidance is not expected to have a material impact
on the Company’s results of operations, financial position, or liquidity.

ASU 2016-01: Financial Instruments-Overall:

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01: Financial Instruments-Overall: Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. ASU 2016-01 amends various aspects of the recognition, measurement,
presentation, and disclosure for financial instruments. Most significantly, ASU 2016-01 requires equity investments
(except those accounted for under the equity method of accounting or those that result in consolidation of an investee)
to be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net income (loss). ASU 2016-01 is effective for
annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2017 and will be
applied using a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption.
Adoption of ASU 2016-01 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial position, cash flows,
or total comprehensive income, but could impact the Company’s results of operations and earnings (loss) per share as
changes in fair value will be presented in net income (loss) rather than other comprehensive income (loss).

ASU 2016-02: Leases:

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02: Leases. ASU 2016-02 was issued to improve the financial
reporting of leasing transactions. Under current guidance for lessees, leases are only included on the balance sheet if
certain criteria, classifying the agreement as a capital lease, are met. This update will require the recognition of a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability, discounted to present value, for all leases that extend beyond 12
months. For operating leases, the asset and liability will be expensed over the lease term on a straight-line basis, with
all cash flows included in the operating section of the statement of cash flows. For finance leases, interest on the lease
liability will be recognized separately from the amortization of the right-of-use asset in the statement of
comprehensive income and the repayment of the principal portion of the lease liability will be classified as a financing
activity while the interest component will be included in the operating section of the statement of cash flows. ASU
2016-02 is effective for annual and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is
permitted. Upon adoption, leases will be recognized and measured at the beginning of the earliest period presented
using a modified retrospective approach. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of ASU
2016-02 on its consolidated financial statements.
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ASU 2016-09: Stock Compensation:

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09: Compensation – Stock Compensation: Improvement to Employee
Share-Based Payment Accounting. ASU 2016-09 was issued to simplify the accounting for share-based payment
awards. The guidance requires that all tax effects related to share-based payment be made through the statement of
operations at the time of settlement as opposed to the current guidance that requires excess tax benefits to be
recognized in additional paid-in-capital. ASU 2016-09 also removes the requirement to delay recognition of a tax
benefit until it reduces current taxes payable. The change is required to be applied on a modified retrospective basis,
with a cumulative effect adjustment to opening accumulated deficit. Additionally, all tax related cash flows resulting
from share-based payments are to be reported as operating activities on the statement of cash flows, a departure from
the current requirement which presents tax benefits as an inflow from financing activities and an outflow from
operating activities. ASU 2016-09 is effective for annual and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2016. Early adoption is permitted with any adjustments reflected as of the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption.
The Company does not believe the adoption of ASU 2016-09 will have a material impact on its consolidated financial
statements.

ASU 2016-13: Financial Instruments – Credit Losses:

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13: Financial Instruments – Credit Losses: Measurement of Credit Losses
on Financial Instruments. ASU 2016-13 was issued to provide financial statement users with more useful information
regarding the expected credit losses on financial instruments held as assets. Under current GAAP, financial statement
recognition for credit losses on financial instruments was generally delayed until the loss was probable of occurring.
The amendments of ASU 2016-13 eliminate this probable initial recognition threshold and instead reflect an entity’s
current estimate of all expected credit losses. The amendments also broaden the information that an entity must
consider in developing its expected credit loss estimates for those assets measured at amortized cost by using
forecasted information instead of the current methodology which only considered past events and current conditions.
Under ASU 2016-13, credit losses on available-for-sale debt securities will be measured in a manner similar to current
GAAP, however, the amendments require that credit losses be presented as an allowance against the investment,
rather than as a write-down. The amendments also allow the entity to record reversals of credit losses in current period
net income, which is prohibited under current GAAP. The amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019, including interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted.
The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of ASU 2016-02 on its consolidated financial
statements.
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4. Investments

A summary of the amortized cost, estimated fair value, and gross unrealized gains and losses on the Company’s
investments in fixed income and equity securities at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 is as follows.

As of June 30, 2016 Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Estimated
Fair
Value

Fixed income securities:
U.S. government and government agencies $ 650 $ 14 $ — $ 664
State municipalities and political subdivisions 2,026 37 — 2,063
Asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations 11,706 159 (4 ) 11,861
Corporate 10,894 184 (8 ) 11,070
Total fixed income securities 25,276 394 (12 ) 25,658
Equity securities:
Common stock 1,000 10 — 1,010
Total equity securities 1,000 10 — 1,010
Total fixed income and equity securities $ 26,276 $ 404 $ (12 ) $ 26,668

As of December 31, 2015
Fixed income securities:
U.S. government and government agencies $ 716 $ — $ (4 ) $ 712
State municipalities and political subdivisions 1,656 2 (7 ) 1,651
Asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations 9,057 13 (53 ) 9,017
Corporate 8,903 16 (61 ) 8,858
Total fixed income securities $ 20,332 $ 31 $ (125 ) $ 20,238
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The table below summarizes the Company’s fixed income securities at June 30, 2016 by contractual maturity periods.
Actual results may differ as issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations, with or without penalties, prior to
the contractual maturity of these obligations.

Matures in: Amortized
Cost

Estimated
Fair Value

One year or less $ 941 $ 942
One to five years 11,962 12,138
Five to ten years 4,244 4,332
More than ten years 8,129 8,246
Total $ 25,276 $ 25,658

The following table highlights, by loss position and security type, those fixed income and equity securities in
unrealized loss positions as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015. The tables segregate the holdings based on the
period of time the investments have been continuously held in unrealized loss positions. There were 19 and 107 fixed
income investments that were in unrealized loss positions as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.
The Company held no equity securities in unrealized loss positions at either date. 

Less than 12
Months

Greater than 12
Months Total

As of June 30, 2016
Estimated
Fair
Value

Unrealized
Loss

Estimated
Fair
Value

Unrealized
Loss

Estimated
Fair
Value

Unrealized
Loss

Fixed income securities:
Asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage
obligations $649 $ (1 ) $656 $ (3 ) $1,305 $ (4 )

Corporate 235 (4 ) 547 (4 ) 782 (8 )
Total investments in fixed income securities $884 $ (5 ) $1,203 $ (7 ) $2,087 $ (12 )

As of December 31, 2015
Fixed income securities:
U.S. government and government agencies $412 $ (4 ) $— $ — $412 $ (4 )
State municipalities and political subdivisions 1,014 (7 ) — — 1,014 (7 )
Asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage
obligations 7,406 (53 ) — — 7,406 (53 )
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Corporate 5,236 (61 ) — — 5,236 (61 )
Total investments in fixed income securities $14,068 $ (125 ) $— $ — $14,068 $ (125 )

Under the terms of the certificate of authority granted to Maison by the Texas Department of Insurance, Maison is
required to pledge securities totaling approximately $2,000 with the State of Texas. Maison deposited the required
securities with the State of Texas on May 13, 2015. These securities consist of various fixed income securities listed in
the preceding tables which have an amortized cost basis of $2,002 and estimated fair value of $2,033 as of June 30,
2016.  

The Company’s other investments are comprised of investments in two limited partnerships which seek to provide
equity and asset-backed debt investment in a variety of privately-owned companies. The Company has committed to a
total investment of $1,000, of which the limited partnerships have drawn down approximately $387 through June 30,
2016. One of these limited partnerships is managed by Argo Management Group, LLC, an entity which, as of April
21, 2016 is wholly owned by KFSI. The Company has accounted for its investments under the cost method as the
instruments do not have readily determinable fair values and the Company does not exercise significant influence over
the operations of the limited partnerships or the underlying privately-owned companies.
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Other-than-Temporary Impairment:

The establishment of an other-than-temporary impairment on an investment requires a number of judgments and
estimates. The Company performs a quarterly analysis of the individual investments to determine if declines in market
value are other-than-temporary. The analysis includes some or all of the following procedures as deemed appropriate
by the Company:

·considering the extent, and length of time during which the market value has been below cost;

· identifying any circumstances which management believes may impact the recoverability of the unrealized loss
positions;

·obtaining a valuation analysis from a third-party investment manager regarding the intrinsic value of these
investments based upon their knowledge and experience combined with market-based valuation techniques;

·reviewing the historical trading volatility and trading range of the investment and certain other similar investments;

·assessing if declines in market value are other-than-temporary for debt instruments based upon the investment grade
credit ratings from third-party credit rating agencies;

·assessing the timeliness and completeness of principal and interest payment due from the investee; and
·assessing the Company’s ability and intent to hold these investments until the impairment may be recovered.

The risks and uncertainties inherent in the assessment methodology used to determine declines in market value that
are other-than-temporary include, but may not be limited to, the following:

· the opinions of professional investment managers could be incorrect;
· the past trading patterns of investments may not reflect their future valuation trends;

· the credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies may be incorrect due to unforeseen events or unknown facts
related to the investee company’s financial situation; and

·the historical debt service record of an investment may not be indicative of future performance and may not reflect a
company’s unknown underlying financial problems.

The Company has reviewed currently available information regarding the investments it holds which have estimated
fair values that are less than their carrying amounts and believes that these unrealized losses are primarily due to
temporary market and sector-related factors rather than to issuer-specific factors. The Company does not intend to sell
these investments in the short term, and it is not likely that it will be required to sell these investments before the
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recovery of their amortized cost.

Accordingly, all of the Company’s investments were in good standing and there were no write-downs for
other-than-temporary impairments on the Company’s investments for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.

The Company does not have any exposure to subprime mortgage-backed investments. Net investment income for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

Three
Months
Ended
June 30,

Six Months
Ended
June 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015
Investment income:
Interest on fixed income securities $109 $65 $209 $117
Interest on cash and cash equivalents 28 30 55 58
Other 2 — 2 —
Gross investment income 139 95 266 175
Investment expenses (12 ) (16 ) (24 ) (18 )
Net investment income $127 $79 $242 $157

5. Reinsurance

The Company reinsures, or cedes, a portion of its written premiums on a per risk and excess of loss basis to
non-affiliated insurers in order to limit its loss exposure. Although reinsurance is intended to reduce the Company’s
exposure risk, the ceding of insurance does not legally discharge the Company from its primary liability for the full
amount of coverage under its policies. If the reinsurer fails to meet its obligations under the applicable reinsurance
agreement, the Company would still be required to pay the insured for the loss.

14 
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Under the Company’s per-risk treaties, reinsurance recoveries are received for up to $1,750 in excess of a retention of
$250 for each risk. The Company ceded $222 and $135 in written premiums under its per-risk treaties for the six
months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The Company’s excess of loss treaties are based upon a treaty year beginning on June 1st of each year and expiring on
May 31st of the following year. Thus, the financial statements for the six month periods ending June 30, 2016 and
2015 contain premiums ceded under three separate excess of loss treaties. Under the Company’s 2015/2016 excess of
loss treaty which expired on May 31, 2016, for each catastrophic event occurring within a 144-hour period, the
Company receives reinsurance recoveries of up to $121,000 in excess of a retention of $4,000 per event. The
Company had also procured another layer of reinsurance protection that may be used for any event above $125,000,
up to a maximum recovery of $15,000. This $15,000 second layer of coverage applied in total to all events occurring
during the treaty year of June 1, 2015 through May 31, 2016. The aggregate loss the Company would retain for two
catastrophes occurring during the treaty year was $5,000.

On June 1, 2016 the Company entered into a new excess of loss treaty whereby for each catastrophic event occurring
within a 144-hour period, the Company receives reinsurance recoveries of up to $170,000 in excess of a $5,000
retention per event. For any event above $175,000, the Company purchased aggregate coverage, with an additional
limit of $25,000. The $25,000 aggregate coverage applies in total to all events occurring during the June 1, 2016 to
May 31, 2017 treaty year. The aggregate loss the Company would retain for two catastrophes occurring during the
treaty year is $7,000.

The Company ceded $9,219 and $6,155 in written premiums under its excess of loss treaties for the six months ended
June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

In June 2015, we began writing business through a quota-share agreement with Brotherhood Mutual Insurance
Company (“Brotherhood”). Through this agreement, we act as a reinsurer, and have assumed wind/hail only exposures
on certain churches and related structures Brotherhood insures throughout the State of Texas. Our quota-share
percentage varies from 50%-100% of wind/hail premium written by Brotherhood, dependent upon the geographic
location (coastal areas versus non-coastal areas) within the State of Texas. For the six months ended June 30, 2016,
we have written $858 in assumed premiums and have approximately 620 in-force policies under this agreement as of
June 30, 2016.
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The impact of reinsurance treaties on the Company’s financial statements is as follows:

Three months
ended
June 30,

Six months ended
June 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015
Premium written:
Gross $14,714 $12,178 $25,518 $20,199
Ceded (5,870 ) (3,552 ) (9,441 ) (6,290 )
Net premium written $8,844 $8,626 $16,077 $13,909

Premium earned:
Gross $11,708 $9,105 $23,276 $17,704
Ceded (4,196 ) (2,854 ) (7,543 ) (5,435 )
Net premium earned $7,512 $6,251 $15,733 $12,269

Losses and LAE incurred:
Gross $5,616 $2,991 $15,480 $3,619
Ceded (3,778 ) 26 (7,006 ) 27
Net losses and LAE incurred $1,838 $3,017 $8,474 $3,646

6. Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Deferred policy acquisition costs (“DPAC”) consist primarily of commissions, premium taxes, assessments and other
policy processing fees incurred which are related to successful efforts to acquire new or renewal insurance contracts.
Acquisition costs deferred on insurance products are amortized over the period in which the related revenues are
earned. Costs associated with unsuccessful efforts or costs that cannot be tied directly to a successful policy
acquisition are expensed as incurred.
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DPAC as well as the related amortization expense associated with DPAC for the three and six months ended June 30,
2016 and 2015, is as follows:

Three months
ended
June 30,

Six months
ended
June 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015

Balance, beginning of period, net $3,677 $2,928 $4,030 $3,091
Additions 2,525 2,060 4,162 3,423
Amortization (2,063) (1,571) (4,053) (3,097)
Balance, June 30, net $4,139 $3,417 $4,139 $3,417

7. Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves

The Company continually revises its estimates of the ultimate financial impact of claims made. A significant degree of
judgment is required to determine amounts recorded in the consolidated financial statements for the provision for loss
and loss adjustment expense reserves. The process for establishing the provision for loss and loss adjustment expense
reserves reflects the uncertainties and significant judgmental factors inherent in predicting future results of both
known and unknown loss events. The process of establishing the provision for loss and loss adjustment expense
reserves relies on the judgment and opinions of a large number of individuals, including the opinions of the Company’s
independent actuaries.

The Company’s evaluation of the adequacy of loss and loss adjustment expense reserves includes a re-estimation of the
liability for loss and loss adjustment expense reserves relating to each preceding financial year compared to the
liability that was previously established. The results of this comparison and the changes in the provision for loss and
loss adjustment expense reserves, net of amounts recoverable from reinsurers, for the three and six months ended June
30, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:
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Three months
ended
June 30,

Six months ended
June 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015

Balance, beginning of period, gross of reinsurance $5,957 $1,074 $2,123 $1,211
Less reinsurance recoverable on loss and LAE
expense reserves (2,028) (307 ) (120 ) (363 )

Balance, beginning of period, net of reinsurance 3,929 767 2,003 848
Incurred related to:
Current year 1,800 3,017 8,603 3,647
Prior years 38 — (129 ) (1 )
Paid related to:
Current year (2,604) (2,350) (7,048) (2,572)
Prior years (710 ) (84 ) (976 ) (572 )
Balance, June 30, net of reinsurance 2,453 1,350 2,453 1,350
Plus reinsurance recoverable related to loss and LAE
expense reserves 3,431 108 3,431 108

Balance, June 30, gross of reinsurance $5,884 $1,458 $5,884 $1,458
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8. Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 varies from the amount that would
result by applying the applicable statutory federal income tax rate of 34% to income before income taxes as
summarized in the following table:

Three
months
ended
June 30,

Six months
ended
June 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015
Income tax expense (benefit) at statutory income tax rate $734 $(67 ) $159 $(1,081)
State income tax (net of federal tax benefit) 82 (8 ) 77 46
Other 4 3 6 6
Income tax expense (benefit) $820 $(72 ) $242 $(1,029)

The Company carries a net deferred income tax asset of $203 and $506 at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015,
respectively, all of which the Company believes is more likely than not to be fully realized based upon management’s
assessment of future taxable income. Significant components of the Company’s net deferred tax assets are as follows:

June
30,
2016

December
31,
2015

Deferred income tax assets:
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves $27 $ 22
Unearned premium reserves 1,573 1,462
Net operating loss carryforwards 102 284
Other 496 542
Deferred income tax assets $2,198 $ 2,310

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Deferred policy acquisition costs $1,407 $ 1,370
State deferred taxes 405 378
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Other 183 56
Deferred income tax liabilities $1,995 $ 1,804

Net deferred income tax assets $203 $ 506

As of June 30, 2016, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits. The Company analyzed its tax positions in
accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740, Income Taxes, and has determined
that there are currently no uncertain tax positions. The Company generally recognizes interest and penalties, if any,
related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense (benefit).

9. Net Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Net earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares and common share equivalents outstanding during the periods presented.
In calculating diluted earnings per share, those potential common shares that are found to be anti-dilutive are excluded
from the calculation. The table below provides a summary of the numerators and denominators used in determining
basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.

Three months ended
June 30,

Six months ended
June 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015
Basic and Diluted:
Net income (loss) $1,340 $(125 ) $225 $(2,149 )
Weighted average common shares outstanding 6,097,043 6,355,475 6,104,061 6,356,793
Earnings (Loss) per common share $0.22 $(0.02 ) $0.04 $(0.34 )

The following potentially dilutive securities outstanding at June 30, 2016 and 2015 have been excluded from the
computation of diluted weighted-average shares outstanding as their effect would be anti-dilutive.

As of June 30,
2016 2015

Options to purchase common stock 210,489 210,489
Warrants to purchase common stock 1,906,875 1,906,875
Restricted stock units 20,500 20,500
Performance shares 475,000 475,000

2,612,864 2,612,864
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10. Options, Warrants, and Restricted Stock Units

The Company has established an equity incentive plan for employees and directors of the Company (the “Plan”). The
purpose of the Plan is to create incentives designed to motivate recipients to contribute toward the Company’s growth
and success, and also to attract and retain persons of outstanding competence, and provide such persons with an
opportunity to acquire an equity interest in the Company. In April 2015, the Company’s shareholders approved an
amendment to the Plan to allow for the issuance of additional award types under the Plan. In addition to non-qualified
stock options issuable under the Plan, the amendment provides for the issuance of restricted stock, restricted stock
units (“RSUs”), performance shares, performance cash awards, and other stock-based awards. The Plan provides for the
issuance of 354,912 shares of common stock. As of June 30, 2016, both stock options and RSUs have been issued to
the Company’s employees under the Plan resulting in 156,956 shares available for future issuance under the Plan.

There were no grants, exercises, or cancellations of the Company’s stock options for the six months ended June 30,
2016. On June 14, 2016, the Company amended the option agreement between the Company and its President and
CEO, Mr. Raucy, that was originally entered into on February 28, 2014, to extend the expiration date from June 30,
2016 to December 31, 2016, provided that Mr. Raucy is employed by the Company on the date of exercise.

The following table summarizes the Company’s stock options outstanding as of June 30, 2016.

Stock Options Outstanding as of June 30, 2016

Date of
Grant

Exercise
Price ($)

Expiration
Date

Remaining
Contractual
Life (Years)

Number
Outstanding

Number
Exercisable

02/28/2014 8.00 12/31/2016 0.50 33,033 33,033
03/31/2014 8.00 03/31/2019 2.75 163,301 124,109
04/04/2014 8.69 04/04/2019 2.76 14,155 10,757

Total 210,489 167,899

On May 29, 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors granted RSUs to certain of its executive officers under the Plan.
Each RSU granted entitles the grantee to one share of the Company’s common stock upon the vesting date of the RSU.
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The RSUs vest as follows: (i) 50% upon the date that the closing price of the Company’s common stock equals or
exceeds $10.00 per share and; (ii) 50% upon the date that the closing price of the Company’s common stock equals or
exceeds $12.00 per share. Prior to the vesting of the RSUs, the grantee will not be entitled to any dividends declared
on the Company’s common stock. The RSUs do not expire, however, should the grantee discontinue employment with
the Company for any reason other than death or disability, all unvested RSUs will be deemed forfeited on the date
employment is discontinued. The following table summarizes RSU activity for the six months ended June 30, 2016.

Restricted Stock Units
Number
of
Units

Weighted
Average
Grant
Date Fair
Value

Non-vested units, December 31, 2015 20,500 $ 1.34
    Granted — —
    Vested — —
    Forfeited — —
Non-vested units, June 30, 2016 20,500 $ 1.34

Due to the fact that the Company’s RSUs vest based upon market conditions, the Company used a Monte Carlo
valuation model to estimate their fair value as of the date of grant. Based on the model, the estimated fair value on
grant date was determined to be $28, which the Company will recognize as compensation expense over a derived
service period of approximately two years.
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Total stock based compensation expense for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $20 and $21,
respectively. As of June 30, 2016, total unrecognized stock compensation expense of $48 remained, which will be
recognized through March 31, 2018.

There were no grants, exercises, or cancellations of the Company’s common stock warrants for the six months ended
June 30, 2016. The following table summarizes the Company’s warrants outstanding as of June 30, 2016.

Date of
Grant

Exercise
Price ($)

Expiration
Date

Remaining
Contractual
Life (Years)

Number
Outstanding
and
Exercisable

03/31/2014 9.60 03/31/2019 2.75 312,500
03/31/2014 10.00 03/31/2019 2.75 94,375
02/24/2015 15.00 02/24/2022 5.66 1,500,000

Total 1,906,875

11. Shareholders’ Equity

Treasury Shares

On December 1, 2014, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program for up to 500,000
shares of the Company’s common stock. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, the Company
repurchased 49,119 and 75,268 shares, respectively. Through June 30, 2016, the Company has repurchased an
aggregate 299,119 shares at an aggregate purchase price of $2,252, or $7.53 per share, including all fees and
commissions. On January 29, 2016, the Company retired 250,000 of its treasury shares, resulting in a reclassification
of the purchase price of $1,917 to additional paid in capital.

Edgar Filing: 1347 Property Insurance Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

36



We anticipate repurchases to continue to be made periodically at our discretion through the period ending December
31, 2016 as the Company’s Board of Directors has approved an aggregate repurchase of up to 500,000 shares. Our
decisions around the timing, volume, and nature of the share repurchases will be dependent upon market conditions,
applicable securities laws, as well as other factors.

12. Related Party Transactions

Related party transactions are carried out in the normal course of operations and are measured in part by the amount of
consideration paid or received as established and agreed by the parties. Management believes that consideration paid
for such services in each case approximates fair value. Except where disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the following is a summary of related party transactions.

Performance Share Grant Agreement

On March 26, 2014, the Company entered into a Performance Share Grant Agreement (“PSGA”) with Kingsway
America, Inc. (“KAI”, a wholly owned subsidiary of KFSI), whereby KAI will be entitled to receive up to an aggregate
of 375,000 shares of PIH common stock upon achievement of certain milestones regarding the Company’s stock price.
Pursuant to the terms of the PSGA, if at any time the last sales price of the Company’s common stock equals or
exceeds: (i) $12.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the
like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period, KAI will receive 125,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock; (ii) $15.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations
and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period, KAI will receive 125,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock (in addition to the 125,000 shares of common stock earned pursuant to clause (i) herein);
and (iii) $18.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like)
for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period, KAI will receive 125,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock (in addition to the 250,000 shares of common stock earned pursuant to clauses (i) and (ii) herein). The shares of
common stock granted to KAI will have a valuation equal to the last sales price of PIH common stock on the day prior
to such grant. As of June 30, 2016, the Company had not issued any shares under the PSGA.
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Termination of Management Services Agreement

As a result of the termination of the Management Services Agreement (“MSA”), which occurred on February 24, 2015,
the Company has issued the following securities to 1347 Advisors, LLC (“Advisors”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
KFSI.

· The Performance Shares Grant Agreement dated February 24, 2015.

· 120,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock of the Company (the “Preferred Shares”)

·A warrant (the “Warrant”) to purchase 1,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of fifteen
dollars per share. The Warrant expires seven years from date of issuance.

The Performance Shares Grant Agreement grants Advisors 100,000 shares of the Company’s common stock issuable
upon the date that the last sales price of the Company’s common stock equals or exceeds ten dollars per share for any
twenty trading days within any 30-day trading period (the “Milestone Event”). Advisors will not be entitled to any
dividends declared or paid on the Company’s stock prior to the Milestone Event having been achieved.

The Preferred Shares have a par value of twenty five dollars and pay annual cumulative dividends at a rate of eight
percent per annum. Cumulative dividends shall accrue, whether or not declared by the Board and irrespective of
whether there are funds legally available for the payment of dividends. Accrued dividends shall be paid in cash only
when, as, and if declared by the Board out of funds legally available therefor or upon a liquidation or redemption of
the Preferred Shares. In the event of any voluntary of involuntary liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the
Company, the holders of the Preferred Shares then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the assets of the
Company available for distributions to its shareholders, before any payment shall be made to holders of securities
junior in preference to the Preferred Shares. The Preferred Shares rank senior to the Company’s common stock, and the
Company is not permitted to issue any other series of preferred stock that ranks equal or senior to the Preferred Shares
while the Preferred Shares are outstanding. On February 22, 2016 the Company’s board of directors authorized a
dividend payment on the Preferred Shares for shareholders of record as of February 23, 2016. Accordingly, on
February 24, 2016, the Company issued a cash payment of $240 to Advisors representing the first annual dividend
payment the Company has made on the Preferred Shares.
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Unless redeemed earlier by the Company as discussed below, with the written consent of the holders of the majority
of the Preferred Shares then outstanding, the Company will be required to redeem the Preferred Shares then
outstanding on February 24, 2020 (the “Mandatory Redemption Date”), for a redemption amount equal to twenty five
dollars per share plus all accrued and unpaid dividends on such shares. The Company has the option to redeem the
Preferred Shares prior to the Mandatory Redemption Date immediately prior to the consummation of any change in
control of the Company that may occur.

Accounting Treatment of the Buyout Transaction

As a result of the termination of the MSA agreement, the Company recognized total expenses in the amount of $5,421
for the quarter ended March 31, 2015 as follows:

Three
months
ended
March
31,
2015

Cash paid $ 2,000
Issuance of Series B Preferred Shares 2,311
Issuance of Warrants and Performance Shares 1,010
Professional fees incurred in connection with the Buyout 100
Total loss on termination of MSA $ 5,421

The Company applied the guidance outlined in ASC 480 – Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity in recording the
issuance of the Series B Preferred Shares. Due to the fact that the Preferred Shares have a mandatory redemption date
of February 24, 2020, the guidance required that we classify the Preferred Shares as a liability on our consolidated
balance sheet, as opposed to recording the value of the shares in equity. The resulting liability was recorded at a
discount to the $4,200 redemption amount including all dividends expected to be paid on the Preferred Shares while
outstanding, discounted for the Company’s estimated cost of equity (13.9%). As a result, total amortization in the
amount of $1,889 will be charged to interest expense through February 24, 2020 using the effective interest method.
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The Company applied the guidance outlined in ASC 505-50 – Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employees in recording
the issuance of the Warrants and Performance Shares by recognizing an increase to equity for the estimated fair value
for both instruments for the three months ended March 31, 2015. We estimated the fair value of the Warrants on grant
date based upon the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Significant assumptions used in determining the fair value of
the Warrants were as follows:

Risk-free interest rate 1.79%
Dividend yield —
Expected volatility 23.7%
Expected term (in years) 7

We utilized a Monte Carlo simulation model to determine the estimated fair value of the Performance Shares due to
the fact that shares are only issuable based upon the achievement of certain market conditions. This pricing model
uses multiple simulations to evaluate the probability of achieving the market conditions, as well as a number of other
inputs (some of which are Level 3 inputs as defined by the FASB) with respect to the expected volatility and dividend
yield (among other inputs) of the Company’s common shares.

Based upon these models, the estimated fair value of both the Warrants and Performance Shares was determined to be
$1,010 on the date of grant.

Investment in Limited Liability Company

On April 21, 2016, KFSI completed the acquisition of Argo Management Group LLC (“Argo”). Argo’s primary business
is to act as the Managing Member of Argo Holdings Fund I, LLC, an investment fund in which the Company has
committed to invest $500, of which the Company has invested $100 as of June 30, 2016. The managing member of
Argo, Mr. John T. Fitzgerald, was also appointed to KFSI’s board of directors on April 21, 2016.

13. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
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The table below details the change in the balance of each component of accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.

Three
months
ended
June 30,

Six months
ended
June 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities:
Balance, beginning of period $166 $74 $(62 ) $(1 )
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications 143 (123) 488 (10 )
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (2 ) — (2 ) —
Income taxes (48 ) 42 (165) 4
Net current-period other comprehensive income 93 (81 ) 321 (6 )
Balance, June 30 $259 $(7 ) $259 $(7 )

14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is best evidenced by quoted bid or ask price, as appropriate, in an active market. Where bid or ask prices are
not available, such as in an illiquid or inactive market, the closing price of the most recent transaction of that
instrument subject to appropriate adjustments as required is used. Where quoted market prices are not available, the
quoted prices of similar financial instruments or valuation models with observable market based inputs are used to
estimate the fair value. These valuation models may use multiple observable market inputs, including observable
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, index levels, credit spreads, equity prices, counterparty credit quality,
corresponding market volatility levels and option volatilities. Minimal management judgment is required for fair
values calculated using quoted market prices or observable market inputs for models. Greater subjectivity is required
when making valuation adjustments for financial instruments in inactive markets or when using models where
observable parameters do not exist. Also, the calculation of estimated fair value is based on market conditions at a
specific point in time and may not be reflective of future fair values. For the Company’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortized cost, the book value is not adjusted to reflect increases or decreases in fair value due to market
fluctuations, including those due to interest rate changes, as it is the Company’s intention to hold them until there is a
recovery of fair value, which may be to maturity.
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The Company classifies its investments in fixed income and equity securities as available-for-sale and reports these
investments at fair value. Fair values of fixed income securities for which no active market exists are derived from
quoted market prices of similar instruments or other third-party evidence.

The FASB has issued guidance that defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for and asset (or
paid to transfer a liability) in the principal, or most advantageous market in an orderly transaction between market
participants. This guidance also establishes a fair value hierarchy that requires and entity to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The guidance categorizes
assets and liabilities at fair value into one of three different levels depending on the observation of the inputs
employed in the measurements, as follows:

·Level 1 – inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets
providing the most reliable measurement of fair value since it is directly observable.

·
Level 2 – inputs to the valuation methodology which include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets. These inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly for substantially the full-term of the financial
instrument.

·Level 3 – inputs to the valuation methodology which are unobservable and significant to the measurement of fair
value.

Financial instruments measured at fair value as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 in accordance with this
guidance are as follows.

As of June 30, 2016 Level
1 Level 2 Level

3 Total

Fixed income securities:
U.S. government and government agencies $— $664 $ — $664
State municipalities and political subdivisions — 2,063 — 2,063
Asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations — 11,861 — 11,861
Corporate — 11,070 — 11,070
Total fixed income securities — 25,658 — 25,658
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Equity securities:
Common stock 1,010 — — 1,010
Total equity securities 1,010 — — 1,010

Total fixed income and equity securities $1,010 $25,658 $ — $26,668

As of December 31, 2015
Fixed income securities:
U.S. government and government agencies $— $712 $ — $712
State municipalities and political subdivisions — 1,651 — 1,651
Asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations — 9,017 — 9,017
Corporate — 8,858 — 8,858
Total $— $20,238 $ — $20,238

15. Statutory Requirements

The Company’s insurance subsidiary, Maison prepares statutory basis financial statements in accordance with
accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the LDI. Prescribed statutory accounting practices include state laws,
rules and regulations as well as accounting practices and rules as outlined in a variety of publications of the National
Association of Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC”). Permitted statutory accounting practices encompass all accounting
practices that are not prescribed, but instead have been specifically requested by an insurer and allowed by the state in
which the insurer is domiciled (in Maison’s case, Louisiana). Permitted practices may differ from state to state,
company to company within a state, and may change in the future. In converting from statutory accounting basis to
U.S. GAAP, typical adjustments include the deferral of acquisition costs (which are all charged to operations as
incurred on a statutory basis), the inclusion of statutorily non-admitted assets on the balance sheet, the inclusion of net
unrealized holding gains or losses related to investments included on the balance sheet, as well as the inclusion of
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities in the statement of operations.
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Statutory Surplus and Capital Requirements

In order to retain its certificate of authority in the State of Louisiana, Maison is required to maintain a minimum
capital surplus of $5,000. As of June 30, 2016 Maison’s capital surplus was $16,943.

The LDI employs risk-based capital (“RBC”) reports to monitor Maison’s financial condition. Risk-based capital is
determined in accordance with a formula adopted by the NAIC which takes into consideration the covariance between
asset risk, credit risk, underwriting risk, and other business risks. The RBC report determines whether Maison falls
into the “no action” level or one of the four action levels set forth in the Louisiana Insurance Code. Furthermore, in
order to retain its certificate of authority in the State of Texas, Maison is required to maintain an RBC ratio of 300%
or more. As of June 30, 2016, Maison’s RBC ratio was above 300%.

States routinely require deposits of assets for the protection of policyholders. As of June 30, 2016, Maison held
investment securities with a fair value of approximately $100 as a deposit with the LDI and investment securities with
a fair value of approximately $2,033 as a deposit with the TDI.

Surplus Notes

PIH, as the parent company of Maison, is subject to the insurance holding company laws of the State of Louisiana,
which, among other things, regulate the terms of surplus notes issued by insurers to their parent company. Maison’s
capital is comprised of three surplus notes issued to PIH for the total amount of $2,050, all of which were approved by
the LDI prior to their issuance. The first note, issued in October 2013 in the principal amount of $650 will mature in
October 2017. The second note, in the principal amount of $850 was issued in December 2015 and will mature in
December 2017. The third note was issued in March 2016 in the principal amount of $550 and will mature in March
2018. All three notes accrue interest at 10% per annum. Interest payments on the notes are due annually, and are also
subject to prior approval by the LDI.

Edgar Filing: 1347 Property Insurance Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

44



Dividend Restrictions

As a Louisiana domiciled insurer, the payment of dividends from our insurance subsidiary is restricted by the
Louisiana Insurance Code. Dividends can only be paid if an insurer’s paid-in capital and surplus exceed the minimum
required by the Louisiana Insurance Code by one hundred percent or more, or as otherwise provided. Any dividend or
distribution that when aggregated with any other dividends or distributions made within the preceding twelve months
exceeds the lesser of (a) ten percent of the insurer’s surplus as regards policyholders as of the thirty-first day of
December next preceding; or (b) the net income of the insurer, not including realized capital gains, for the twelve
month period ending the thirty-first day of December next preceding; is considered to be extra-ordinary and shall not
be paid until thirty days after the LDI has received notice of the declaration thereof and has not within that period
disapproved the payment, or until the LDI has approved the payment within the thirty-day period. In determining
whether a dividend or distribution is extra-ordinary, an insurer may carry forward net income from the previous two
calendar years that has not already been paid out in dividends.

As of June 30, 2016, Maison had not paid any dividends to its sole shareholder, PIH.

16. Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Proceedings:

From time to time, we are involved in legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business.
Currently, it is not possible to predict legal outcomes and their impact on the future development of claims. Any such
development will be affected by future court decisions and interpretations. Because of these uncertainties, additional
liabilities may arise for amounts in excess of the Company’s current reserves. In addition, the Company’s estimate of
ultimate loss and loss adjustment expenses may change. These additional liabilities, or increases in estimates, or a
range of either, cannot be reasonably estimated, and could result in income statement charges that could be material to
the Company’s results of operations in future periods.
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Operating Lease Commitments:

As of June 30, 2016, the Company had the following amounts due under its operating leases for facilities leased in
Baton Rouge, Louisiana, and Tampa, Florida.

Year ended June 30,
2017 $340
2018 316
2019 296
2020 101
2021 and thereafter —

$1,053
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto
included in this Quarterly Report on form 10-Q and in our Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2015 on
Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on March 17, 2016.

Unless context denotes otherwise, the terms “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our,” refer to 1347 Property Insurance Holdings,
Inc., and its subsidiaries.

Cautionary Note about Forward-Looking Statements

This section of this quarterly report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, such as
statements of our plans, objectives, expectations, and intentions. We use words such as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “plan,”
“project,” “continuing,” “ongoing,” “expect,” “believe,” “intend,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” and similar expressions to identify
forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements related to future events or future performance, but
reflect management’s current beliefs, based on information currently available. A number of factors could cause actual
events to differ materially from those anticipated, including the matters discussed under Item 1A. Risk Factors on the
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015. We disclaim any obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statements as a result of new information, future events, or for any other reason.

Overview

Maison Insurance Holdings, Inc. was incorporated on October 2, 2012 in the State of Delaware. On November 19,
2013, the Company changed its legal name from Maison Insurance Holdings, Inc. to 1347 Property Insurance
Holdings, Inc. (“PIH”). PIH is a holding company and is engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the property and casualty
insurance business.
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Prior to March 31, 2014, we operated as a wholly owned subsidiary of Kingsway America, Inc. (“KAI”). KAI, in turn, is
a wholly owned subsidiary of Kingsway Financial Services, Inc. (“KFSI”), a publicly owned holding company based in
Toronto, Ontario, Canada. On March 31, 2014, the Company completed an initial public offering of its common stock
and then on June 13, 2014, the Company completed a follow-on offering. Through the combination of our IPO and
follow-on offering, we issued approximately five million shares of our common stock. As of June 30, 2016 KAI and
companies affiliated with KAI held approximately 1.1 million shares of our common stock, equivalent to 17.7% of
our outstanding shares.

PIH has three wholly-owned subsidiaries; Maison Insurance Company (“Maison”), a Louisiana-domiciled property and
casualty insurance company, Maison Managers, Inc. (“MMI”), a managing general agent, incorporated in the State of
Delaware on October 2, 2012, and ClaimCor, LLC (“ClaimCor”), a Florida based claims adjusting company.

Maison writes personal property and casualty insurance in Louisiana and both personal and commercial property and
casualty insurance in Texas. Maison provides dwelling policies for wind and hail only, and dwelling, homeowner and
mobile home/manufactured home policies for multi-peril property risks.

Maison began writing commercial business in Texas in June 2015, through a quota-share agreement with Brotherhood
Mutual Insurance Company (“Brotherhood”). Through this agreement, we have assumed wind/hail only exposures on
certain churches and related structures Brotherhood insures throughout the State of Texas.

Maison distributes its insurance policies through a network of more than 180 producing independent agents in
Louisiana and approximately 90 producing independent agents in Texas. These agents typically represent several
insurance companies in order to provide various insurance product lines to their clients. The Company refers to these
policies as voluntary policies.

In addition to the voluntary policies Maison writes, we have participated in the last four rounds of take-outs from
Louisiana Citizens Property Insurance Company (“Citizens”), occurring on December 1st of each year. As the State of
Louisiana has not historically been in the business of serving as an insurer, an insurance “take-out” program was
implemented to reduce the number of properties insured by Citizens. Under this take-out program, state-approved
insurance companies, such as Maison, have the opportunity to assume insurance policies written by Citizens.
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Our in-force policy counts as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are as follows:

Policies in-force
as of

Source of Policies
June
30,
2016

Dec 31,
2015

Total Takeout Policies in Force 8,432 8,957

Homeowners 16,138 14,283
Manufactured Homes 4,587 4,343
Other Dwellings 1,626 806
Total Voluntary Policies in Force 22,351 19,432

Total Direct Policies in Force 30,783 28,389

We do not consider the commercial wind/hail only book of business we have written in Texas in our policies-in-force
count as of June 30, 2016 since we have assumed this business through our quota share agreement with Brotherhood.
As of June 30, 2016, we have assumed wind/hail coverage on approximately 620 active policies in Texas through this
agreement.

MMI serves as the Company’s management services subsidiary and provides underwriting, policy administration,
claims administration, marketing, accounting and other management services to Maison. MMI contracts with
independent agents for policy sales and services, and contracts with an independent third-party for policy
administration services. As a managing general agency, MMI is licensed by and subject to the regulatory oversight of
both the Louisiana and Texas Departments of Insurance (“LDI” and “TDI”, respectively).

We process claims made by our policyholders both internally, through our wholly-owned subsidiary, ClaimCor, as
well as through various third-party claims adjusting companies. MMI has ultimate authority over the claims handling
process, while the agents we appoint have no authority to settle our claims or otherwise exercise control over the
claims process.
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On January 2, 2015, the Company completed its acquisition of 100% of the membership interest of ClaimCor, a
claims and underwriting technical solutions company. Maison processing claims made by our policyholders through
ClaimCor, and also through various third-party claims adjusting companies. We have the ultimate authority over the
claims handling process, while the agents we appoint have no authority to settle our claims or otherwise exercise
control over the claims process.

The Company operates in in a single segment – property and casualty insurance.

Non U.S.-GAAP Financial Measures

The Company assesses its results of operations using certain non-U.S. GAAP financial measures, in addition to U.S.
GAAP financial measures. These non-U.S. GAAP financial measures are defined below. The Company believes these
non-U.S. GAAP financial measures provide useful information to investors and others in understanding and
evaluating our operating performance in the same manner as management does.

The non-U.S. GAAP financial measures should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for or superior to,
any financial measures prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The Company’s non-U.S. GAAP financial measures
may be defined differently from time to time and may be defined differently than similar terms used by other
companies, and accordingly, care should be exercised in understanding how we define our non-U.S. GAAP financial
measures.

Underwriting Ratios

The Company, like many insurance companies, analyzes performance based on underwriting ratios such as loss ratio,
expense ratio and combined ratio. The loss ratio is derived by dividing the amount of net losses and loss adjustment
expenses by net premiums earned. The expense ratio is derived by dividing the sum of amortization of deferred policy
acquisition costs and general and administrative expenses by net premiums earned. All items included in the loss and
expense ratios are presented in the Company’s U.S. GAAP financial statements. The combined ratio is the sum of the
loss ratio and the expense ratio. A combined ratio below 100% demonstrates underwriting profit whereas a combined
ratio over 100% demonstrates an underwriting loss.
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Critical Accounting Policies

See Note 2 – “Significant Accounting Policies” in the Notes to our consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended June 30, 2016 included in Item 1 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for a discussion of the Company’s
critical accounting policies.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 3 – “Recently Issued Accounting Standards” in the Notes to our consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended June 30, 2016 included in Item 1 of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for a discussion of the recent
accounting pronouncements and their effect, if any, on the Company.

Analysis of Financial Condition

As of June 30, 2016 compared to December 31, 2015

Investments

The Company’s investments in fixed income and equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are reported
at estimated fair value. The Company held an investments portfolio comprised primarily of fixed income securities
issued by the U.S. Government, government agencies and high quality corporate issuers. The portfolio is managed by
a third-party investment management firm in accordance with the investment policies and guidelines approved by
Maison’s Board of Directors. These guidelines stress the preservation of capital, market liquidity and the
diversification of risk. Investments held by the Company’s insurance subsidiary must also comply with applicable
domiciliary state regulations that prescribe the type, quality and concentration of investments.

The table below summarizes, by type, the Company’s investments as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015.

Edgar Filing: 1347 Property Insurance Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

51



June 30, 2016 December 31,
2015

Type of Investment Carrying
Amount

Percent
of
Total

Carrying
Amount

Percent
of
Total

Fixed income securities:
U.S. government and government agencies $664 2.4 % $712 3.3 %
State municipalities and political subdivisions 2,063 7.5 % 1,651 7.6 %
Asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations 11,861 43.4 % 9,017 41.6 %
Corporate 11,070 40.5 % 8,858 41.0 %
Total fixed income securities 25,658 93.8 % 20,238 93.5 %
Equity securities 1,010 3.7 % — — %
Short-term investments 290 1.1 % 1,149 5.3 %
Limited liability investments 387 1.4 % 248 1.2 %
Total investments $27,345 100.0 % $21,635 100.0 %

Pursuant to the certificate of authority we received from the TDI, we are required to deposit securities with the State
of Texas. These securities consist of fixed income securities listed in the table above having an amortized cost basis of
$2,002 and an estimated fair value of $2,033 as of June 30, 2016.

The Company’s limited liability investments are comprised of investments in two limited partnerships which seek to
provide equity and asset-backed debt investment in a variety of privately-owned companies. The Company has
committed to a total investment of $1,000, of which the limited partnerships have drawn down approximately $387
through June 30, 2016. One of these limited partnerships is managed by Argo Management Group, LLC, an entity
which, as of April 21, 2016 is wholly owned by KFSI. The Company has accounted for its investments under the cost
method as the instruments do not have readily determinable fair values and the Company does not exercise significant
influence over the operations of the limited partnerships or the underlying privately-owned companies.

Liquidity and Cash Flow Risk

The table below summarizes the fair value of the Company’s fixed income securities by contractual maturity as of June
30, 2016 and December 31, 2015. Actual results may differ as issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations,
with or without penalties, prior to the contractual maturity of these obligations.

June 30, 2016 December 31,
2015

Matures in: Carrying
Amount

Percent
of
Total

Carrying
Amount

Percent
of
Total

One year or less $942 3.7 % $1,012 5.0 %
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One to five years 12,138 47.3 % 10,414 51.5 %
Five to ten years 4,332 16.9 % 2,259 11.2 %
More than ten years 8,246 32.1 % 6,553 32.3 %
Total $25,658 100.0 % $20,238 100.0 %
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The Company holds cash and high-grade short-term assets which, along with fixed income securities, management
believes are sufficient in amount for the payment of loss and loss adjustment expense reserves and other operating
subsidiary obligations on a timely basis. The Company may not be able to liquidate its investments in the event that
additional cash is required to meet obligations to its policyholders, however, the Company believes that the
high-quality, liquid investments in its portfolio provide it with sufficient liquidity.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the Company will incur losses due to adverse changes in interest or currency exchange
rates and equity prices. Given the Company’s operations only invest in U.S. dollar denominated instruments and
maintains a relatively insignificant investment in equity instruments, its primary market risk exposures in the
investments portfolio are to changes in interest rates.

Because the investments portfolio is comprised of primarily fixed maturity instruments that are usually held to
maturity, periodic changes in interest rate levels generally impact the Company’s financial results to the extent that the
investments are recorded at market value and reinvestment yields are different than the original yields on maturing
instruments. During periods of rising interest rates, the market values of the existing fixed income securities will
generally decrease. The reverse is true during periods of declining interest rates.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is defined as the risk of financial loss due to failure of the other party to a financial instrument to discharge
an obligation. Credit risk arises from the Company’s positions in short-term investments, corporate debt instruments
and government and government agency bonds.

At June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Company’s debt securities had the following quality ratings as assigned
by Standard and Poor’s (“S&P”) or Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s”).
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June 30, 2016 December 31,
2015

Rating (S&P/Moody’s) Carrying
Amount

Percent
of
Total

Carrying
Amount

Percent
of
Total

AAA/Aaa $14,247 55.5 % $10,741 53.0 %
Aa/Aa 2,732 10.7 % 2,520 12.5 %
A/A 6,755 26.3 % 4,745 23.4 %
BBB 1,924 7.5 % 2,232 11.1 %
Total fixed income securities $25,658 100.0 % $20,238 100.0 %

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment

The length of time an individual investment may be held in an unrealized loss position may vary based on the opinion
of the investment manager and their respective analyses related to valuation and to the various credit risks that may
prevent the Company from recapturing the principal investment. In the case of an individual investment where the
investment manager determines that there is little or no risk of default prior to maturity, the Company would elect to
hold the investment in an unrealized loss position until the price recovers or the investment matures. In situations
where facts emerge that might increase the risk associated with recapture of principal, the Company may elect to sell
the investment at a loss.

The Company performs a quarterly analysis of its investment portfolio to determine if declines in market value are
other-than-temporary. Further information regarding the Company’s detailed analysis and factors considered in
establishing an other-than-temporary impairment on an investment is discussed within Note 4 - “Investments,” to the
consolidated financial statements in Item 1 of this report.

As a result of the analysis performed by the Company, there were no write-downs for other-than-temporary
impairments related to investments for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.

At June 30, 2016, the gross unrealized losses for fixed income and equity securities amounted to $12, and there were
no unrealized losses attributable to non-investment grade fixed income securities. At both June 30, 2016 and
December 31, 2015, all unrealized losses on individual investments were considered temporary. Fixed income
securities in unrealized loss positions continued to pay interest and were not subject to material changes in their
respective debt ratings. The Company concluded the declines in value were considered temporary. As the Company
has the capacity to hold these investments to maturity, no impairment provision was considered necessary.
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Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

The Company’s deferred policy acquisition costs (“DPAC”) include commissions, premium taxes, assessments and
policy processing fees that are directly related to successful efforts to acquire new or existing insurance policies to the
extent they are considered recoverable and represent those costs related to acquiring the premiums the Company has
yet to earn (the unearned premium reserve). DPAC increased $109, to $4,139 at June 30, 2016 from $4,030 at
December 31, 2015, corresponding with the increase to our unearned premium reserve over the same time period.

Effective January 1, 2016, we amended the terms of our quota-share agreement with Brotherhood such that the
premiums we receive, and the commissions we pay, are remitted on an earned basis in contrast to a written basis,
which occurred under the terms of the agreement prior to January 1st. While this change does not impact the net
income earned as a result of the agreement, it does impact certain assets and liabilities on our consolidated financial
statements, such as our unearned premium reserves and DPAC assets. This change to our quota-share agreement with
Brotherhood resulted in a $221 decrease to DPAC from December 31, 2015 to June 30, 2016.

Premiums Receivable, Net of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Premiums receivable, net of allowance for credit losses, decreased by $184 to $2,211 as of June 30, 2016 from $2,395
as of December 31, 2015. Due to our participation in the Citizens take-out program on December 1, 2015, we had a
balance due from Citizens in the amount of $460 as of December 31, 2015. This balance had been reduced to $72 as
of June 30, 2016.

Ceded Unearned Premiums

Ceded Unearned Premiums represents the unexpired portion of premiums which have been paid to the Company’s
reinsurers. Ceded Unearned Premiums are charged to income over the terms of the respective reinsurance treaties.
Ceded unearned premiums increased $1,082 to $3,887 as of June 30, 2016 from $2,805 as of December 31, 2015
which is predominantly due to the timing of installment payments due under our excess of loss catastrophe treaty. As
we entered into a new treaty effective June 1, 2016, with higher limits compared to our prior treaty which expired on
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May 31, 2016, the amount of premium we cede and therefor is due under our installment agreement has increased
over the prior treaty year.

Reinsurance Recoverable

Reinsurance recoverable on both paid losses and loss reserves represents amounts due to the Company, or expected to
be due to the Company from its reinsurers, based upon claims paid as well as claims reserves which have exceeded the
retention amount under our reinsurance treaties. As of June 30, 2016, we have recorded expected recoveries from our
reinsurers of $2,829 on paid losses and $3,431 on loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, resulting primarily from
a series of severe storms which produced multiple tornadoes and flooding in the state of Louisiana in late February
2016, as well as a wind and hail event occurring in both Texas and Louisiana in early March 2016. See “Loss and Loss
Adjustment Expense Reserves” in Item 2 of this report for further discussion on the Company’s claims reserves and
expected recoveries.

Funds Deposited with Reinsured Companies

Funds deposited with reinsured companies represents collateral we had placed on deposit with Brotherhood based
upon our quota-share agreement to reinsure a portion of Brotherhood’s business for wind/hail coverage only. Pursuant
to the agreement, we were required to fund our pro-rata portion of reserves Brotherhood had established for unearned
premium, losses and loss adjustments expenses, and any other amounts for which Brotherhood had not been able to
take credit for on its annual statutory financial statements. As of December 31, 2015, we had funded this obligation
via a deposit of $725 made to Brotherhood under a trust agreement. Effective January 1, 2016, we modified our
agreement with Brotherhood such that this deposit is no longer required.

Current Income Taxes Recoverable/Payable

Current income taxes recoverable were $1,006 as of June 30, 2016 compared to $965 as of December 31, 2015 which
represent the estimate of both the Company’s state and federal income taxes to be recovered for the six months ended
June 30, 2016 and year ended December 31, 2015, respectively, less estimated payments made during each period.
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Net Deferred Income Taxes

Net deferred income taxes decreased $303 to $203 as of June 30, 2016 compared to $506 as of December 31, 2015.
Net deferred income taxes are comprised of approximately $2,198 and $2,310 of deferred tax assets, net of
approximately $1,995 and $1,804 of deferred tax liabilities as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.
The change in the net deferred tax asset is primarily due to a decrease in the deferred tax assets related to our net
operating loss carryforwards.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment was $281 and $234 as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, and consists of
computers, office equipment, and improvements at our leased facilities in Tampa, Florida and Baton Rouge,
Louisiana, shown net of accumulated depreciation. Also included in these balances are vehicles we have purchased for
the use of our sales representatives in the state of Texas. Our policy for the capitalization and depreciation of these
assets can be found in Note 2 – Significant Accounting Policies in Item 1 of this report.

Other Assets

Other assets increased $115, to $820 as of June 30, 2016 from $705 as of December 31, 2015. The major components
of other assets, and the change therein, are shown below.

Other Assets June 30,
2016

December 31,
2015 Change

Accrued interest on investments $ 101 $ 77 $ 24
Security deposits for facility leases 38 38 —
Prepaid expenses 681 590 91
Total $ 820 $ 705 $ 115
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Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves

Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves represent the estimated liabilities for reported loss events, incurred and but
not reported (“IBNR”) loss events, as well as the related estimated loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”). The table below
separates our loss reserves and LAE between IBNR and case specific estimates as of June 30, 2016 and December 31,
2015, and also shows the expected reinsurance recoverable on those reserves.

Case
Loss
Reserves

Case
LAE
Reserves

Total
Case
Reserves

IBNR
Reserves
(including
LAE)

Total
Reserves

Reinsurance
Recoverable
on Reserves

June 30, 2016
Homeowners(1) $ 1,454 $ 203 $ 1,657 $ 2,375 $ 4,032 $ 1,779
Special Property(2) 1,467 10 1,477 375 1,852 1,652
Total $ 2,921 $ 213 $ 3,134 $ 2,750 $ 5,884 $ 3,431

December 31, 2015
Homeowners $ 758 $ 72 $ 830 $ 1,070 $ 1,900 $ 120
Special Property 49 9 58 165 223 —
Total $ 807 $ 81 $ 888 $ 1,235 $ 2,123 $ 120

(1)	Homeowners refers to our multi-peril policies for traditional dwellings as well as mobile and manufactured
homes.

(2)	Special property includes both our Fire and Allied lines of business, which are primarily wind/hail only products,
and also includes the commercial wind/hail only business we have assumed through our agreement with Brotherhood.

For the six months ended June 30, 2016, the Company reported $128 of favorable development (redundancy) for loss
and loss adjustment expense reserves from prior accident years. This favorable development was primarily related to
our aggregate catastrophe reinsurance treaty, which runs from June 1, 2015 through May 31, 2016, and has allowed us
to recover multiple weather related claims once our excess of loss reinsurance retentions were met, as a result of
significant storm activity in February and March 2016.

Gross reserves as of June 30, 2016 were $5,884, an increase of $3,761 from December 31, 2015. A significant portion
of this increase relates to reserves established for two weather related events that occurred during the last week of
February and first week of March, accounting for $1,402 of the gross reserve as of June 30, 2016. Our reinsurance
recoverable of $3,431 as of June 30, 2016 includes $1,415 related to these catastrophes. See ‘Net Losses and Loss
Adjustment Expenses” in Item 2 of this report for further information.
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The Company cannot predict whether loss and loss adjustment expense reserves will develop favorably or unfavorably
from the amounts reported in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. Any such development could have a
material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial results for a given period.

Unearned Premium Reserves

Unearned premium reserves increased $1,482 to $24,924 as of June 30, 2016 compared to $23,442 as of December
31, 2015.

The following table outlines the change in unearned premium reserves by line of business.

June 30,
2016

December
31, 2015 Change

Homeowners $16,650 $ 15,688 $ 962
Special Property 8,274 7,754 520
Total $24,924 $ 23,442 $ 1,482

Ceded Reinsurance Premiums Payable

Ceded reinsurance premiums payable increased $2,417 to $5,700 as of June 30, 2016 compared to $3,283 as of
December 31, 2015, primarily as a result of the timing of payments due under our reinsurance programs. The bulk of
the balance payable as of June 30, 2016 represents a quarterly payment due under our catastrophe reinsurance
program, which was paid in July, 2016.

Agent Commissions Payable
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Agent commissions payable increased $349 to $752 as of June 30, 2016 versus $403 as of December 31, 2015. As
agent commissions are paid in arrears, this balance represents commissions owed to the Company’s independent agents
on policies written throughout the months ended June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. As the
commissions we pay to our agents are based upon a percentage of the premium our agents write, the balance due will
vary directly with the volume of premium written in the previous month.

Premiums Collected in Advance

Premium deposits were $2,103 and $870 and represent cash the Company has received for policies which were not yet
in-force as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. Upon the effective date of coverage, advance
premiums are reclassified to the unearned premium reserve account.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities increased $418, to $2,281 as of June 30, 2016 from $1,863 as of December 31,
2015. The major components of accrued expenses and other liabilities, as well as the change therein, are shown below.

June
30,
2016

December
31, 2015 Change

Accrued employee compensation $201 $ 352 $ (151 )
Accrued professional fees 358 267 91
Unearned policy fees 188 168 20
Accrued premium taxes and assessments 1,161 1,004 157
Other accounts payable 373 72 301
Total $2,281 $ 1,863 $ 418
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Related Party Transactions

As a result of the termination of the Management Services Agreement (“MSA”), which occurred on February 24, 2015,
the Company has issued the following securities to 1347 Advisors, LLC (“Advisors”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
KFSI.

· The Performance Shares Grant Agreement dated February 24, 2015.

· 120,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock of the Company (the “Preferred Shares”)

·A warrant (the “Warrant”) to purchase 1,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of fifteen
dollars per share. The Warrant expires seven years from date of issuance.

The Performance Shares Grant Agreement grants Advisors 100,000 shares of the Company’s common stock issuable
upon the date that the last sales price of the Company’s common stock equals or exceeds ten dollars per share for any
twenty trading days within any 30-day trading period (the “Milestone Event”). Advisors will not be entitled to any
dividends declared or paid on the Company’s stock prior to the Milestone Event having been achieved.

The Preferred Shares have a par value of twenty five dollars and pay annual cumulative dividends at a rate of eight
percent per annum. Cumulative dividends shall accrue, whether or not declared by the Board and irrespective of
whether there are funds legally available for the payment of dividends. Accrued dividends shall be paid in cash only
when, as, and if declared by the Board out of funds legally available therefor or upon a liquidation or redemption of
the Preferred Shares. In the event of any voluntary of involuntary liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the
Company, the holders of the Preferred Shares then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the assets of the
Company available for distributions to its shareholders, before any payment shall be made to holders of securities
junior in preference to the Preferred Shares. The Preferred Shares rank senior to the Company’s common stock, and the
Company is not permitted to issue any other series of preferred stock that ranks equal or senior to the Preferred Shares
while the Preferred Shares are outstanding. On February 22, 2016 the Company’s board of directors authorized a
dividend payment on the Preferred Shares for shareholders of record as of February 23, 2016. Accordingly, on
February 24, 2016, the Company issued a cash payment of $240 to Advisors representing the first annual dividend
payment the Company has made on the Preferred Shares.
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Unless redeemed earlier by the Company as discussed below, with the written consent of the holders of the majority
of the Preferred Shares then outstanding, the Company will be required to redeem the Preferred Shares then
outstanding on February 24, 2020 (the “Mandatory Redemption Date”), for a redemption amount equal to twenty five
dollars per share outstanding plus all accrued and unpaid dividends on such shares. The Company has the option to
redeem the Preferred Shares prior to the Mandatory Redemption Date immediately prior to the consummation of any
change in control of the Company that may occur.

Effect on Financial Condition and Statement of Operations

Under the original MSA, the Company was required to pay Advisors a fee of 1% of written premiums on a monthly
basis. The Company replaced this ongoing annuity by providing Advisors with an up-front cash payment and other
consideration which lead to a one-time charge of $5,421 to the Company’s operations for the quarter ended March 31,
2015 as follows:

Three
months
ended
March
31,
2015

Cash paid $ 2,000
Issuance of Series B Preferred Shares 2,311
Issuance of Warrants and Performance Shares 1,010
Professional fees incurred in connection with the Buyout 100
Total loss on termination of MSA $ 5,421

The issuance of the Warrants and Performance Shares had no effect on the Company’s total shareholders’ equity as they
both resulted in equal and offsetting charges to the Company’s retained earnings and additional paid-in capital. The fair
value of the Warrant was estimated on grant date based upon the Black-Scholes option pricing model while a Monte
Carlo model was utilized to determine the fair value of the Performance Shares due to the fact that these shares are
only issuable based upon the achievement of certain market conditions.

Since the Preferred Shares have a mandatory redemption provision requiring redemption on February 24, 2020, the
Company was required to classify the Preferred Shares as a liability on the balance sheet instead of recording the
value of these shares in equity. The resulting liability was recorded at a discount to the ultimate redemption amount of
the Preferred Shares based upon an analysis of the cash payments expected to occur under the terms of the Preferred
Shares discounted for the Company’s estimated cost of equity (13.9%). As a result, amortization in the amount of
$1,889 will be charged to operations during the period the Preferred Shares are outstanding using the effective interest
method. For the quarter and six months ended June 30, 2016, amortization of the discount on the Preferred Shares
totaled $86 and $174, respectively.

Edgar Filing: 1347 Property Insurance Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

63



 32

Edgar Filing: 1347 Property Insurance Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

64



1347 PROPERTY INSURANCE HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

$ amounts in thousands, except per share data

Contractual Obligations

As of June 30, 2016, the Company had the following amounts due under its operating leases for facilities leased in
Baton Rouge, Louisiana, and Tampa, Florida.

Year ending June 30,
2017 $340
2018 316
2019 296
2020 101
Total $1,053

Shareholders’ Equity

The primary drivers behind the changes to total shareholders’ equity for the six months ended June 30, 2016 were the
purchase (and retirement) of treasury shares pursuant to the Company’s share buyback program, as well as the net loss
and net unrealized gains on our investment portfolio as shown below.

Common
Shares

Treasury
Shares

Total
Shareholders’

Equity
Balance, December 31, 2015 6,134,274 223,851 $ 47,506
Stock compensation expense — — 20
Repurchases of common stock (75,268 ) 75,268 (521 )
Retirement of treasury shares — (250,000) —
Net income — — 225
Unrealized gains on investment portfolio (net of income taxes) — — 321
Balance, June 30, 2016 6,059,006 49,119 $ 47,551

Results of Operations
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Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2016 Compared with Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2015

Gross Premiums Written

Gross premiums written increased $2,536 or 21%, for the three months ended June 30, 2016, when compared to the
same period in 2015. On a year-to-date basis, gross premiums written increased $5,319 or 26%. The following table
shows our direct premiums written by line of business.

Three months ended June
30, Six months ended June 30,

Line of Business 2016 2015 Change 2016 2015 Change
Homeowners $9,059 $8,136 $ 923 $16,175 $13,975 $ 2,200
Special Property 5,655 4,042 1,613 9,343 6,224 3,119
Gross Premium Written $14,714 $12,178 $ 2,536 $25,518 $20,199 $ 5,319

The increase in gross written premiums over the six month periods can be attributed to growth in all three channels of
production: (i) production from our independent agents, which accounted for approximately $3,637 gross written
premium growth corresponding to the increase in our policies in force over the period; (ii) growth in premiums written
through our assumption of policies from Citizens, accounting for approximately $1,136; and (iii) the addition of
assumed business in Texas through our agreement with Brotherhood, resulting in an increase of approximately $546
in gross premiums written.
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Ceded Premiums Written

Ceded premiums written increased to $5,870 for the three months ended June 30, 2016, compared to $3,552 for the
second quarter 2015. For the six month periods ending June 30, 2016 and 2015, ceded premiums written were $9,441
and $6,290, respectively. The increase in ceded premiums written is primarily due to an increase in limits purchased
under our catastrophe excess of loss reinsurance (“CAT XOL”) program. As our treaty years run from June 1st through
May 31st of each year, the six month period ending June 30, 2015 covers ceded premiums written under both our
2014/2015 CAT XOL treaty and our 2015/2016 CAT XOL treaty. Similarly, the six month period ending June 30,
2016 covers ceded premiums written under both our 2015/2016 and 2016/2017 CAT XOL treaties. The following
table is a summary of the key provisions under each of our CAT XOL treaties.

2014/2015
CAT XOL
Treaty

06/01/14 –
05/31/15

2015/2016
CAT XOL
Treaty

06/01/15 –
05/31/16

2016/2017
CAT XOL
Treaty

06/01/16 –
05/31/17

Wind/Hail loss occurrence clause(1) 120 hours 144 hours 144 hours
Retention on first occurrence $3,000 $4,000 $5,000
Retention on second occurrence $2,000 $1,000 $2,000
Limit of coverage, including first event retention $92,000 $140,000 $200,000

(1)   Specifies the time period during which our losses from the same occurrence may be aggregated and applied to
our retention and limits. We may pick the date and time when the period of consecutive hours begin in order to
maximize our recovery.

The total cost of our CAT XOL coverage is estimated to be approximately $23,000 for the 2016/2017 treaty year.

Net Premium Earned
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The following table shows our net premiums earned by line of business.

Three months ended June
30, Six months ended June 30,

Line of Business 2016 2015 Change 2016 2015 Change
Homeowners $5,189 $4,585 $ 604 $10,796 $8,809 $ 1,987
Special Property 2,323 1,666 657 4,937 3,460 1,477
Net premium earned $7,512 $6,251 $ 1,261 $15,733 $12,269 $ 3,464

The increase in net premiums earned is due primarily to the increase in gross written premiums less premiums ceded
as previously discussed. Premium earned on a gross and ceded basis is as shown in the following table.

Three months ended June
30, Six months ended June 30,

2016 2015 Change 2016 2015 Change
Gross premium earned $11,708 $9,105 $ 2,603 $23,276 $17,704 $ 5,572
Ceded premium earned 4,196 2,854 1,342 7,543 5,435 2,108
Net premium earned $7,512 $6,251 $ 1,261 $15,733 $12,269 $ 3,464

Other Income

Other income increased $99, to $254 for the quarter ended June 30, 2016, compared to $155 for the same period in
2015. Other income also increased $58 for the six months ended June 30, 2016 compared to the same period in 2015.
Other income is comprised of claims adjusting fee revenue earned by our subsidiary, ClaimCor, policy fee income
charged to our policyholders for inspections as well as premium financing fees for those policyholders which elect to
pay their premiums on an installment basis, as well as commission revenue resulting from a brokerage sharing
agreement between our insurance subsidiary, Maison, and the intermediary Maison uses to place its CAT XOL
reinsurance program.

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses

Net losses and LAE represent both actual payments made and changes in estimated future payments to be made to our
policyholders. The following table sets forth the components of our losses and loss ratios for the periods presented.

Six months ended June 30,
2016 2015

Losses  Loss Ratio Losses  Loss Ratio 

Edgar Filing: 1347 Property Insurance Holdings, Inc. - Form 10-Q

68



($) (%) ($) (%)
Weather-related non-catastrophe losses $379 2.4 % $1,114 9.1 %
Non-weather related losses 3,228 20.5 % 1,083 8.8 %
Core loss(1) 3,607 22.9 % 2,197 17.9 %
Catastrophe loss(2) 4,986 31.7 % 1,450 11.8 %
Prior period development(3) (119 ) (0.7 )% (1 ) — %
Total $8,474 53.9 % $3,646 29.7 %
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(1) We define Core Loss as net losses and LAE less the sum of Catastrophe losses and prior period redundancy.

(2)

Property Claims Services (PCS) defines a catastrophic event as an event where the insurance industry is
estimated to incur over $25 million of insured property damage that also impacts a significant number of
insureds. For purposes of the above table, we have defined a Catastrophe as a PCS event where our
estimated cost exceeds $1,500.

(3)

Prior period development (redundancy) is the amount of ultimate actual loss settlement value which is more than
the estimated reserves recorded for a particular liability or loss, while redundancy represents the ultimate actual
loss settlement value which is less than the estimated and determined reserves recorded for a particular liability or
loss.

Our net loss ratio (net losses and LAE divided by net premiums earned) for the three and six months ended June 30,
2016 was 24.5% and 53.9% respectively, compared to a net loss ratio of 48.2% and 29.7% for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2015. While we experienced what we consider a lower than average amount of incurred losses
in the first quarter 2015 (in both frequency and severity), the first quarter 2016 was marked by severe storms which
produced multiple tornadoes throughout Louisiana and Texas in February and March 2016. Our total incurred losses
from these two separate events exceeded $1,500 each, and thus we have defined these events as catastrophe losses in
the table above. Our CAT XOL program is structured so that our retention is set at $4,000 for a single event, and when
a second event occurs within the same treaty year, as did with the March 2016 storms, our retention drops to $1,000
for this second storm. After anticipated recoveries under both our catastrophe and per-risk reinsurance treaties, our net
incurred losses from these events were $4,986 through June 30, 2016, accounting for over half of the current year’s
loss ratio.

Amortization of Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Amortization of deferred acquisition costs for the second quarter 2016 was $2,063 compared to $1,571 for the second
quarter of 2015, and includes items such as commissions earned by our agents, premium taxes, assessments, and
policy processing fees. Amortization for the six months periods ending June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $4,053 and
$3,097 respectively. Amortization charges correlate with earned premiums over the same period shown by calculating
deferred policy acquisition cost amortization as a percentage of earned premiums, which was 27.4% and 25.1% for the
three month periods, and 25.8% and 25.2% for the six month periods ending June 30, 2016 and 2015 respectively.

General and Administrative Expenses
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General and administrative expenses were $1,746 for the quarter ended June 30, 2016, compared to $1,985 the quarter
ended June 30, 2015. This decrease is primarily associated with a decrease in professional fees when comparing the
two periods, as we incurred significant professional fees in the second quarter 2015 relating to our first ever annual
shareholders’ meeting and regulatory filings associated with our shareholders’ meeting. These costs dropped
significantly for the current quarter. General and administrative expenses expressed as a percentage of net premium
earned have decreased to 21.1% for the six month period in 2016 compared to 30.1% for the same period 2015. In
2015, we incurred additional professional fees associated with the acquisition of ClaimCor, for which there was no
comparable expense in 2016.

Loss on Termination of Management Services Agreement

Upon the termination of the MSA with 1347 Advisors, we recorded a loss of $5,421 for the six months ended June 30,
2015, representing the estimated fair value of the cash, warrants, preferred shares and performance shares paid to
Advisors. For the six months ended June 30, 2016, we also recorded a charge in the amount of $174 associated with
the amortization of the discount recorded on the preferred shares issued in the transaction, compared to a charge of
$109 for the same period in 2015. See “Related Party Transactions” in the Analysis of Financial Condition above for
further information on the termination of the MSA.

Income Tax (Benefit) Expense

Income tax expense for the three months ended June 30, 2016 was $820, on pretax income of $2,160 compared to a
benefit of $72 on pretax losses of $197 for the three months ended June 30, 2015. For the six month period ended June
30, 2016 income tax expense was $242 on pretax income of $467, compared to a benefit of $1,029 on pretax losses of
$3,178 for the six month period ended June 30, 2015.

Net (Loss) Income

As a result of the foregoing, the Company’s net income for the second quarter 2016 was $1,340 compared with a net
loss of $125 for the second quarter of 2015. For the six months ended June 30, 2016, the Company’s net income was
$225, or $0.04 per diluted share, compared to a net loss of $2,149, or $0.34 per diluted share for the six months ended
June 30, 2015.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The purpose of liquidity management is to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all financial commitments and
obligations as they fall due. The liquidity requirements for the Company and its subsidiaries have been met primarily
by funds generated from operations, and from the proceeds from the sales of our common and preferred stock. Cash
provided from these sources is used primarily for loss and LAE payments as well as other operating expenses. The
timing and amount of payments for net losses and loss adjustment expenses may differ materially from the Company’s
provisions for loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, which may create increased liquidity requirements.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes the Company’s consolidated cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and
2015.

Six months ended
June 30,

Summary of Cash Flows 2016 2015
Net cash provided by operating activities $3,672 $3,707
Net cash used by investing activities (5,303) (4,580)
Net cash used by financing activities (761 ) (233 )
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents $(2,392) $(1,106)

Six months ended June 30, 2016

For the six months ended June 30, 2016, the net cash provided by operating activities as reported on our consolidated
statement of cash flows was $3,672, driven, in large by our collection of approximately $19,900 in premiums for the
year (net of the amounts we have ceded to our reinsurers), less the payment of approximately $10,100 in loss and LAE
expenses (net of ceded recoveries collected from our reinsurers). We also paid approximately $3,415 in commissions
to our agents, and to Brotherhood and Citizens as ceding commissions. Lastly, cash payments in the approximate
amount of $2,713 were made for taxes, assessments and general and administrative expenses.
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The net cash used by investing activities as reported on our consolidated statement of cash flows was $5,303, resulting
from the net purchases of fixed income and equity securities for investment portfolio. Net cash used by financing
activities was $761, which results from a dividend payment of $240 to Advisors as holders of the Preferred Shares
issued in the MSA termination transaction, as well as the payment of $521 for the repurchase of 75,268 shares of our
common stock pursuant to our share buyback program.

As a result of the foregoing, our net decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the six months ending June 30, 2016
was $2,392.

Six months ended June 30, 2015

For the six months ended June 30, 2015, the net cash provided by operating activities as reported on our consolidated
statement of cash flows was $3,707. The source of cash was primarily from the collection of approximately $21,138 in
premiums in the period. This amount was reduced by the payment of ceded reinsurance premiums of $5,407, the
payment of losses and loss adjustment expenses (net of subrogation recoveries) of $3,144, the one-time cash payment
of $2,000 to Advisors pursuant to the termination of the MSA, commissions paid to our agents equaling $2,320,
wages and salaries paid to our employees equaling $997, payments to various local and federal regulators for premium
and income taxes and assessments in the amount of $1,258, and other net operating payments of $2,305.

The net cash used by investing activities as reported on our consolidated statements of cash flows was $4,580,
primarily due to our purchase of fixed income securities for our investment portfolio.

The net cash used by financing activities was $233, as a result of our purchase of 27,993 of our shares to be held as
treasury stock.

As a result of the foregoing, our net decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the six months ended June 30, 2015 was
$1,106.
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$ amounts in thousands, except per share data

Regulatory Capital

In the United States, a risk-based capital (“RBC”) formula is used by the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners (“NAIC”) to identify property and casualty insurance companies that may not be adequately capitalized.
Most states, including Louisiana, the domiciliary state of our insurance subsidiary, Maison, as well as Texas, where
Maison began writing business in June 2015, have adopted the NAIC RBC requirements. In general, insurers
reporting surplus with respect to policyholders below 200% of the authorized control level, as defined by the NAIC,
on December 31st of the previous year are subject to varying levels of regulatory action, which may include
discontinuation of operations. As of June 30, 2016, Maison’s reported surplus was considered to be in the “no action”
level by the Louisiana Department of Insurance.

Furthermore, pursuant to the consent order approving Maison’s admission into the State of Texas, Maison has agreed
to:

·
Establish a deposit of $2,000 for the benefit of Texas policyholders. The Company has fulfilled this obligation by
depositing fixed income securities, having an estimated fair value of $2,033 as of June 30, 2016, with the State of
Texas.

·Maintain a Risk-Based-Capital (“RBC”) ratio of 300% or more, and provide calculation of such ratio to the TDI on a
periodic basis.

· Notify the TDI prior to any significant changes in our reinsurance programs.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not applicable.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
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The Company’s management performed an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of the
Company’s principal executive officer and the principal financial officer, and completed an evaluation of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as that term is defined
in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e), as adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“the Exchange Act”) as of June 30, 2016. Disclosure controls and procedures are
the controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports
that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls
and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company files or
submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, including the principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Based on that evaluation, the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2016, there were no changes in internal control over financial reporting that
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are involved in legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business.
Currently, it is not possible to predict legal outcomes and their impact on the future development of claims. Any such
development will be affected by future court decisions and interpretations. Because of these uncertainties, additional
liabilities may arise for amounts in excess of the Company’s current reserves. In addition, the Company’s estimate of
ultimate loss and loss adjustment expenses may change. These additional liabilities, or increases in estimates, or a
range of either, cannot be reasonably estimated, and could result in income statement charges that could be material to
the Company’s results of operations in future periods.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes to the risk factors previously disclosed in Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” to our
annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 filed with the SEC on March 17, 2016.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Repurchase of Equity Securities

On December 1, 2014, our Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program for up to 500,000 shares of our
common stock. The following table provides information with respect to shares repurchased during the three months
ended June 30, 2016. In November 2015, our Board of Directors approved the continuation of the repurchase program
such that we anticipate repurchases to continue to be made periodically at our discretion through the period ending
December 31, 2016. Our decisions around the timing, volume, and nature of the share repurchases will be dependent
upon market conditions, applicable securities laws, as well as other factors.

Period

Total
Number of
Shares
Purchased

Average
Price
Paid per
Share

Total
Number of
Shares
Purchased
as Part of
Publicly
Announced
Plans or
Programs

Maximum
Number of
Shares that
May Yet
Be
Purchased
Under the
Plans or
Programs

As of March 31, 2016 250,000 $ 7.67 250,000 250,000
April 1 - 30, 2016 — — — 250,000
May 1 - 31, 2016 11,200 6.67 11,200 238,800
June 1 - 30, 2016 37,919 6.85 37,919 200,881
As of June 30, 2016 299,119 $ 7.53 299,119 200,881
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ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit Description

10.1
Fifth Amendment to Option Agreement by and between Douglas N. Raucy and 1347 Property Insurance
Holding, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on June 16, 2016)*

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

* Denotes management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

1347 PROPERTY INSURANCE HOLDINGS, INC.

Date:August 11, 2016 By: /s/ Douglas N. Raucy
Douglas N. Raucy, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(principal executive officer)

Date:August 11, 2016 By: /s/ John S. Hill
John S. Hill, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial and accounting officer)
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